
 

 

CITY OF GRAPEVINE, TEXAS 
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY, JANUARY 7, 2025 
 
GRAPEVINE CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
200 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS 

 
6:30 p.m. Dinner - City Council Conference Room 
7:00 p.m. Call to Order of City Council Meeting - City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m. Executive Session - City Council Conference Room 
7:30 p.m. Regular Meeting - City Council Chambers 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  7:00 p.m. - City Council Chambers 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:   
 
1. City Council to recess to the City Council Conference Room to conduct a closed 

session relative to: 
 

A. Real property relative to deliberation of the purchase, exchange, lease, sale 
or value of real property (City facilities; Public Works; and the 185 acres) 
pursuant to Section 551.072, Texas Government Code.  

 
B. Conference with City Manager and Staff to discuss and deliberate 

commercial and financial information received from business prospects the 
City seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in the City; deliberate the offer of 
a financial or other incentive; with which businesses the City is conducting 
economic development negotiations pursuant to Section 551.087, Texas 
Government Code.    

 
City Council to reconvene in open session in the City Council Chambers and take 
any necessary action relative to items discussed in Executive Session. 

 
REGULAR MEETING:  7:30 p.m. - City Council Chambers 
 
2. Invocation: Jonathan Cook, Associate Pastor at First Baptist Grapevine 
 
3. Posting of the Colors and Pledges of Allegiance  
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
4. Any person who is not scheduled on the agenda may address the City Council 

under Citizen Comments or on any other agenda item by completing a Citizen 
Appearance Request form with the City Secretary.  A member of the public may 
address the City Council regarding an item on the agenda either before or during 



 

City Council  January 7, 2025 Page 2 
 

the Council’s consideration of the item, upon being recognized by the Mayor or 
upon the consent of the City Council. Citizens will have three (3) minutes to 
address Council. In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City 
Council is restricted in discussing or taking action during Citizen Comments.  

 
PRESENTATION 
 
5.  Presentation, discussion, and consideration of proposed amendments to Appendix 

G of the Code of Ordinances regarding architectural standards for structures within 
the original Township boundaries (Grapevine Pattern Book).  

 
PUBLIC HEARING AND RELATED ITEMS 
 
6. City Council to conduct a public hearing relative to the adoption of the Youth 

Programs Standards of Care.   
 
7. Consider Ordinance No. 2025-001 amending the Code of Ordinances Chapter 16 

Parks and Recreation Section 16-19 by adopting the Youth Programs Standards 
of Care and take any necessary action. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
8. Consider Resolution No. 2025-001 authorizing the legislative agenda for the 89th 

session of the Texas State Legislature and take any necessary action.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Consent items are deemed to need little Council deliberation and will be acted upon as 
one business item.  Any member of the City Council or member of the audience may 
request that an item be withdrawn from the consent agenda and placed before the City 
Council for full discussion.  Approval of the consent agenda authorizes the City Manager, 
or his designee, to implement each item in accordance with Staff recommendations. 
 
9. Consider an annual grant to 6 Stones Community Powered Revitalization. City 
 Manager recommends approval.  
 
10. Consider a professional service agreement for the purchase of a fireworks display 
 for the annual 2025 Fourth of July fireworks show from Illumination Fireworks. 
 Convention and Visitors Bureau Director recommends approval.  
 
11. Consider an annual contract for utility bill printing, mailing and offset printing 

services with DataProse, Inc. Chief Financial Officer recommends approval.  
 
12. Consider the renewal of an annual contract for emergency medical continuing 

education and medical director services with BEST EMS. Fire Chief recommends 
approval.  



 

City Council  January 7, 2025 Page 3 
 

13. Consider the renewal for an annual contract for book leasing services with the 
Brodart Company. Library Director recommends approval.  

 
14. Consider the purchase of a replacement dock for the McPherson Slough boat ramp 

from EZ Dock of Texas, LP. Parks and Recreation Director recommends approval.  
 
15. Consider the purchase, repair and installation of the Oak Grove Park transfer pump 

from Smith Pump Company. Parks and Recreation Director recommends 
approval.  

 
16. Consider Resolution No. 2025-002 authorizing the acceptance of the Edward 

Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant for a narcotic analyzer, and Ordinance 
No. 2025-002 to appropriate the funds. Police Chief recommends approval.  

 
17. Consider security and traffic control services during special events with the Police 

Departments from Bedford, Colleyville, Coppell, DFW Airport, Euless, Flower 
Mound, Forney, Haltom City, Hurst, Keller, Northlake, North Richland Hills, 
Richland Hills, Roanoke, Southlake, Watauga, White Settlement, and Trophy Club. 

 Police Chief recommends approval.  
 
18. Consider an annual contract for electrical, lighting, data communications, security 

products and related products, services and solutions with Graybar Electric. Public 
Works Director recommends approval.  

 
19. Consider the minutes of the December 17, 2024 Regular City Council meeting.  

City Secretary recommends approval.   
 
Pursuant to the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551.001 
et seq, one or more of the above items may be considered in Executive Session closed 
to the public.  Any decision held on such matter will be taken or conducted in open session 
following conclusion of the executive session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
 
In accordance with the Open Meetings Law, Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, 
I hereby certify that the above agenda was posted on the official bulletin boards at 
Grapevine City Hall, 200 South Main Street and on the City’s website on January 3, 2025 
by 5:00 p.m. 
 
____________________ 
Tara Brooks, TRMC, CRM  
City Secretary 
If you plan to attend this public meeting and you have a disability that requires special arrangements at the 
meeting, please contact the City Secretary’s Office at 817.410.3182 at least 24 hours in advance of the 
meeting.  Reasonable accommodations will be made to assist your needs. 
 
This meeting can be adjourned and reconvened, if necessary, the following regular business day. 



ITEMS #6 and 7

tbrooks




ORDINANCE NO. 2025-001

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITY
OFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS, AMENDING THEGRAPEVINE
CODE OFORDINANCES BYAMENDING SECTION 16- 
19, ADOPTING THEYOUTH PROGRAMS STANDARDS
OFCARE, CITYOFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS; PROVIDING
FORSEVERABILITY; ANDPROVIDING ANEFFECTIVE
DATE

WHEREAS, TheCityofGrapevine, Texas (the "City") administers daycamps
andprograms forchildren agesfivetothirteen yearsold; and

WHEREAS, asrequiredbyV.T.C.A. HumanResources Code § 42.041(b)(14)  
the "Code"), theCityofGrapevine must meetdaycarelicensing requirements for

elementary agechildren foralldaycamps administered bytheCityorapply foran
exemption fromtheTexas Department ofFamily andProtective Services; and

WHEREAS, the City ofGrapevine Youth Programs Standards ofCare will
provide basicchildcareregulations fordaycampactivitiesoperatedbytheParksand
Recreation andotherdepartments inaccordance withtheCode; and

WHEREAS, asrequired bytheCode, onJanuary 7, 2025, theCityCouncil of
theCityheldapublichearing atitsregular meeting togather input fromcitizens on
theproposed Youth Programs Standards ofCare; and,  

WHEREAS, theYouth Programs Standards ofCareisattached heretoas
Exhibit "A" forallintents andpurposes andshallbeavailable ontheCity'swebsite;  
and

WHEREAS, allconstitutional andstatutory prerequisites fortheapproval of
thisResolution havebeenmet, includingbutnotlimitedtotheOpenMeetingsActand
Chapter 211oftheLocalGovernment Code; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil deems theadoption ofthisordinance tobeinthe
bestinterests ofthehealth, safety, andwelfare ofthe public.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITORDAINED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS:  

Section 1. Thatallmatters stated hereinabove arefoundtobetrueandcorrect
andareincorporated hereinbyreference asifcopied intheirentirety.  

ITEMS #6 and 7



Section 2. ThatSection 16-19oftheCityofGrapevine CodeofOrdinances
shallbeadded toreadasfollows:  

Sec. 16-19YouthProgramsStandardsofCare"  

TheCityCouncil oftheCityofGrapevine hereby adopted theCity
ofGrapevine YouthPrograms Standards ofCareforproviding basicchild
care regulations for day campactivities operated bytheParksand
Recreation Department, aswellasotherdepartments. Asrequired by
V.T.C.A. Human Resources Code § 42.041(b)(14), theStandards
adopted by this ordinance include staffing ratios, minimum staff
qualifications; minimum facility, health, andsafety standards; and
mechanisms formonitoring andenforcing theadopted localstandards. A
substantial copyoftheCityofGrapevine Youth Programs Standards of
Careisattached heretoandincorporated herein forallintents and
purposes andshallbeavailable ontheCity'swebsiteundertheParksand
Recreation subhead."  

Section 3. Thattheabove premises arefoundtobetrueandcorrect andare
incorporated intothebodyofthisordinance asifcopied intheirentirety.  

Section 4. ThattheCityofGrapevine ishereby directed toprovide acopyof
theprogram standards, anotice ofapublic hearing, andacopy of the ordinance
adopting thestandards totheTexas Department ofFamily andProtective Services.  

Section5. Thatifanyportion, section orpartofasection ofthisordinance is
subsequently declared invalid, inoperative or void for any reason by acourt of
competent jurisdiction, theremaining portions, sections orparts ofsections ofthis
ordinance shallbeandremain infullforceandeffectandshallnotinanywaybe
impaired oraffected bysuchdecision, opinionorjudgment.  

Section6.  Thatthefactthatthepresent ordinances andregulations ofthe
CityofGrapevine, Texas, areinadequate toproperly safeguard thehealth, safety,  
morals, peaceandgeneralwelfareoftheinhabitants oftheCityofGrapevine, Texas,  
creates anemergency for the immediate preservation of the public business,  
property, health, safetyand general welfare ofthepublic which requires that this
ordinance shallbecomeeffective fromandafter thedateofitsfinalpassage, andit
isaccordingly soordained.  

2Ordinance No. 2025-001

ITEMS #6 and 7



PASSED AND APPROVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOFGRAPEVINE,  
TEXAS onthisthe7thdayofJanuary, 2025.  

APPROVED:  

William D. Tate
Mayor

ATTEST:  

TaraBrooks
CitySecretary

APPROVED TOASFORM:  

Matthew C.G. Boyle
CityAttorney

3Ordinance No. 2025-001

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 1 of 9

CITY OF GRAPEVINE
PARKS AND RECREATION DEPARTMENT

Youth Programs - Standards of Care

I. GENERAL INFORMATION/ADMINISTRATION

A.  Organization: 

Purpose:  To provide basic childcare regulations for recreation activities operated by
the Grapevine Parks & Recreation Department.  This will allow the
Department to qualify as exempt from requirements of the Texas Human Resource
Code. 

1. The governing body of the City of Grapevine Youth Programs is the City of Grapevine’ s City
Council. 

2. Implementation:  Program will be the responsibility of the Grapevine Parks & Recreation
Department, with the Recreation Manager, Outdoor Programs Supervisor and Recreation
Program Coordinator supervising the overall program and administering the program on-site. 

3. Programs: The Youth Programs Standards of Care will apply to all elementary-age day camp
and programs for children ages 5 – 13 years old.    

4. Other:  Each site will make available for the public and staff a current copy of the Standards of
Care.  Parents of participants will be provided an abbreviated copy of Standards of Care during
the registration process. 

Program Sites: 

121 Community Church 2701 Ira E Woods Ave
Botanical Garden / Bessie Mitchell 411 Ball Street
Community Outreach Center 3010 Mustang Drive
Dove Waterpark 1509 Hood Lane
First Baptist Church 301 East Texas Street
First United Methodist Church 422 Church Street
GCISD school campuses
Grapevine Golf Course 3800 Fairway Drive
Grapevine Public Library 1201 Municipal Way
Lakeview Park 3850 Lakeview Drive
Meadowmere Park 3000 Meadowmere Lane
Oak Grove Baseball Complex 2520 Oak Grove Loop South
Oak Grove Soccer 1299 Oak Grove Loop North
Oak Grove Softball Complex 2700 Dove Loop Road
Parr Park 3010 Parr Lane
Pickering Park 1901 Kimball Road
Pleasant Glade Pool 1805 Hall Johnson Road
Rockledge Park 3600 Pilot Point
The Ranch of Lonesome Dove 3880 Foxfire Lane
The REC of Grapevine 1175 Municipal Way
The Vine Arts & Events Center 225 West Worth Street

ITEMS #6 and 7

Exhibit "A"



Page 2 of 9

B. Implementation: 
The Standards of Care Program will be the responsibility of the Grapevine Parks & Recreation
Department, with the Recreation Program Coordinator overseeing the overall program and the
daily operations/administering the programs on site. 

Regulations apply to these on-going programs: 
Summer Day Camps
Winter Break Camp
Spring Break Camp
Youth Programs
Youth Sports Camps
All Specialty Camps

C.  Day Camp Objective

1. To provide youth with the opportunity to experience a variety of recreational activities which
include sports, games, arts & crafts, education, drama, special events, field trips, etc. 

2. To provide a pleasant and memorable experience in a fun atmosphere. 

3. To provide a safe environment; always promoting good health and welfare for all. 

4. To teach children how to spend their leisure time wisely, in an effort to meet several needs; 
emotional, physical and social. 

D.  Exemption Status: 

Once an exempt status is established, the Licensing Division will not monitor the
recreational program. The Licensing Division will be responsible for investigating
complaints of unlicensed child care and for referring other complaints to the
municipal authorities or, in the case of abuse/neglect allegation, to the local
authorities. 

Exemption status covers ages 5 – 13.  Exemption status does not cover children
under the age of 5 or over the age of 13.   

E.  Standards of Care Review: 

Standards will be reviewed annually and brought to the City Council for approval after a public
hearing is held to pass an ordinance regarding section 42.04 1(b) ( 14) of the Texas Human
Resources Code.  Childcare Licensing will not regulate these programs nor be involved in any
complaint investigation related to the program.   

Any parent, visitor or staff may register a complaint by contacting the Recreation Manager at
817-410-3467 or the Lake Parks Manager at 817-410-3368.   

II.  STAFFING

A.  Summer Camp / Recreation Coordinator:   The Recreation Program Coordinator directs
and manages a staff of 10-16 day-camp counselors and supervises the activities of children in
a day camp environment.   

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 3 of 9

1.  Essential Job Functions:   

a.) Direct and supervise all counselors including hiring and training. 
b.) Complete and submit proper records including camp schedules, counselor work

schedules, payroll, accident/incident reports and attendance. 
c.) Develop age appropriate camp curriculum ( 5-13 years) in accordance with the

philosophy of the program. 
d.) Ensure staff is committed to following established guidelines, procedures and

policies. 
e.) Maintain an orderly, clean and safe environment for the children while promoting a

non-competitive program directed toward accentuating positive behaviors, physical
development and emotional growth.  

f.) Develop and distribute a weekly schedule of activities. 
g.) Complete facility reservations and transportation needs for all camp activities. 
h.) Schedule, confirm, obtain and distribute payment for all field trips. 
i.) Maintain supplies, equipment and all necessary documentation for the operation of

the camp. 
j.) Communicate to parents about camper’ s progress and activities. 
k.) Conduct on-going program evaluations implementing approved

recommendations as needed. 
l.) Provide reports to the Recreation Supervisor on a weekly basis to monitor camp

activities throughout the program. 

2.  Qualifications:   

a.) Bachelor’ s Degree in Education or Recreation is preferred, but not required. 
b.) A minimum of three years of experience as a camp counselor and/or educator. 
c.) Requires a valid Texas driver’ s license with a good driving record over the past three

years. 
d.) Must pass city criminal background check prior to hiring. 
e.) Must pass pre-employment drug screen and/or physical. 
f.) Must complete First Aid and CPR certification prior to camp. 

3. Requirements of Work: 

a.) Coordinator must complete the mandatory staff training program of at least 20 hours, 
in addition to planning hours with site staff prior to the start of camp.  This training
includes departmental orientation, customer service, sexual harassment, behavioral
issues and discipline, training and examination program on sexual abuse and
molestation, as well as practical skills on activities for children in games, songs and
crafts. 

b.) Ability to be physically active and involved with children all day. 
c.) Ability to lift 50 pounds. 
d.) Knowledge of child development and age appropriate activities. 
e.) Advanced organizational and communication skills. 
f.) Team leadership abilities. 
g.) Varied experience in a variety of activities including, but not limited to, sports, art, 

nature, drama and cooperative activities.   

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 4 of 9

B.  Day Camp/Recreation Counselor:  The Camp Counselor is responsible for direct leadership
of youth ages 5 – 13 in a variety of activities including, but not limited to games, sports, arts & 
crafts, schedules, activities, supplies and equipment, and also responsible for cleanliness of the
area used by camp participants.  The counselor positions are also responsible for completing
necessary forms relating to attendance, check-in/check-out procedures, accidents and incidents.   

1. Essential Job Functions:   

a.) Promote a non-competitive, positive, self-image enhancing environment for each
participant through the direction of non-competitive, fun, varied and well-organized
activities. 

b.) Directly lead activities using a method that will provide opportunity for the
involvement of all children on an equal level. The Counselor prepares, in advance, 
direction for activities, daily schedules and required equipment used during activities.   

c.) Accompanies youth on all field trips. 
d.) Exhibit enthusiasm for the activity to impart a feeling of excitement to camp

participants. 
e.) Follow procedures for camper check in/check out.  Report accidents/incidents, 

behavioral modifications and camp schedules.   
f.) Follow guidelines for safety and storage of equipment, including inventory of

supplies. 
g.) Provide and adhere to established guidelines set forth for the safety, behavior, 

communication and discipline of the camp participants. 
h.) Recognize and reward positive, improved and outstanding behavior and/or

accomplishments of camp participants. 

2.  Minimum Qualifications: 

a.) Three months to a year of experience working with children in a day camp setting
depending on if applicant is applying as an RCA/LPA I Camp Counselor or RCA/LPA
II Camp Counselor. 

b.) Minimum age of 16. 
c.) A valid Texas driver’ s license with good driving record. 
d.) Must pass criminal background check prior to hiring. 
e.) Must pass pre-employment drug screen and/or physical. 
f.) Must complete First Aid and CPR certification prior to camp.  

3. Other Requirements: 

a.) Staff must complete the mandatory staff training program of at least 10 hours, in
addition to planning hours with Recreation Program Coordinator prior to the start of
camp.  This training includes departmental orientation, customer service, sexual
harassment training, behavioral issues and discipline, as well as practical skills on
activities for children in games, songs and crafts.   

b.) Staff must exhibit competency, good judgement and self-control, throughout the
duration of camp. 

c.) Staff should relate to children with courtesy, respect, acceptance and patience. 
d.) Staff must wear the proper uniform. 
e.) Staff will be evaluated at least once during the summer prior to the completion of camp.  

Evaluations will be reviewed with the camp counselors to discuss any areas of
improvement or suggestions. 

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 5 of 9

4.  Criminal Background Checks: 

Criminal background checks will be conducted on prospective day camp
employees.  Applicants may be disqualified if they have a job-related criminal
conviction.  A prospective employee will be subject to a pre-employment drug
test and/or physical prior to hiring. 

5. Staffing Ratios:   

The state required ratio for number of children (ages 5-13) may not exceed 15:1 child to
staff.  

III.  FACILITY STANDARDS

A. Emergency evacuation and relocation plans will be posted at each facility. 

B. Program employees will inspect sites frequently for any sanitation or safety concerns.  Those
concerns should be passed on to the Recreation Manager. 

C. Each camp must have a fully stocked first aid kit.  This shall be checked and stocked on a
weekly basis by the Recreation Program Coordinator.  It shall include bandages, first aid cream, 
rubber gloves, Neosporin, alcohol wipes, hot/cold packs, gauze, tweezers and scissors. 

D. In a situation where evacuation is necessary, the first priority of staff is to make sure all
participants are in a safe location. 

E. Program sites will be inspected annually by the Fire Marshal and must comply with Fire
Marshal’ s directives. 

F. The recommended number of fire extinguishers shall be inspected quarterly and available and
primed” for use. 

G. Fire drills should be conducted once a month during the summer camp.  

H. Medication will only be administered with written parental consent.  Prescription medications
shall be left with staff in their original container, labeled with the child’ s name, date, directions
and physician’ s name.  Medication shall be dispensed only as stated on the bottle, and not past
the expiration date. 

I. Non-prescription medicine with the child’s name and date on the medication may be brought
if in the original container. Non-prescription medication will only be administered with written
parental consent.   

J. Each indoor site shall have adequate indoor toilets and lavatories located such that children can
use them independently and program staff can supervise as needed.  There shall be one flush
toilet per 30 children.  Outdoor sites shall provide portable toilets based on number of children
attending each day.  Sinks shall be provided based on one sink per 30 children. 

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 6 of 9

K. All participants must wear appropriate footwear daily.  Sandals and flip flops will be allowed
only in swimming pool areas. 

IV.   SERVICE STANDARDS - Day Camp / Camp Counselors

This information will be provided to each staff as a part of the day camp manual: 

A. Camp staff shirts, shorts, and appropriate footwear are to be worn at all times. 

B. Camp participants and parents will be treated with respect at all times. 

C. Camp staff will take it upon themselves to resolve complaints.  If you are unable to resolve the
complaint on the spot, take the customer’ s name and phone number, investigate complaint
resolution and then follow up with the customer.  

D. Camp staff will keep parents continuously informed of camp activities.  A weekly schedule
will be distributed the week prior to session and extra copies will be kept with the sign in log
daily. 

E. Camp staff will note details of behavior of campers ( accomplishments, discipline problems, 
general activities, etc.) and update parents as much as possible. 

F. Camp staff will monitor the sign in/out log at all times. 

H. Camp staff shall clean/sanitize rooms after each activity.  Floors will be swept or vacuumed, 
chairs stacked, mirrors cleaned, and supplies put away.  This is extremely important due to the
fact that rooms are used throughout the day by other groups. 

I. Camp staff will dedicate their on-duty time to campers and/or parents to ensure a meaningful
and pleasant experience. 

J. Prior to working with campers, camp staff will check all messages for the day. 

V.  OPERATIONAL ISSUES

A. Emergency Phone numbers are kept at the front desk of the facilities, as well as with the
Recreation Program Coordinator on field trips.  Those numbers include fire, police, and
ambulance services. 

B. A Day Camp manual is given to every Day Camp Counselor, Day Camp/Recreation Leader
and Recreation Program Coordinator.  The manual addresses the following items: 

1. Discipline Issues

2. City Rules and Regulations

3. Forms that must be filled out

4. Service Standards

5. Game/activity leadership

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 7 of 9

6. Ways to interact with children

7. Field Trips

Additional manuals will be located at each site for access by any staff member. 

C. Sign in/sign out sheets will be used every day.  Only adults listed on sign-in/out release will be
allowed to pick up children.  An authorized person must enter the pickup location, present
appropriate identification and sign the sheet in order for staff to release the child. 

D. Emergency evacuation and relocation plans will be posted at each facility. 

E. Parents will be notified regarding planned field trips and provided the required release forms. 

F. Enrollment information will be kept and maintained on each child and shall include: 
1. Child’s name, birth date, home address, home telephone number, physician’ s phone

number and address and phone numbers where parents may be reached during the day. 

2. Name, driver’ s license number and telephone numbers of persons to whom the child can
be released. 

3. Field trip release form as needed. 

4. Liability waiver. 

5. Parental consent to administer medication, medical information, and release on participant. 

G. Staff shall immediately notify the parent or other person authorized by the parent when the
child is injured or has been involved in any situation that placed the child at risk. 

H. Staff shall notify parents or authorized persons of children in the facility when there is an
outbreak of a communicable disease in the facility that is required to be reported to the County
Department of Health. Staff must notify parents of children in a group when there is an outbreak
of lice or other infestation in the group. 

I. Discipline:  

1. Discipline and guidance of children must be consistent and based on an understanding of
individual needs and development.  

2. There shall be no harsh, cruel, or unusual treatment. 

a.) Children shall not be shaken, bit, hit, or have anything put in or on their mouth as
punishment. 

b.) Children shall not be humiliated, yelled at or rejected. 
c.) Children shall not be subjected to abusive or profane language. 
d.) Punishment shall not be associated with food. 
e.) Corporal punishment in any form will not be tolerated. 
f.) Staff may use brief, supervised separation from the group if necessary, but staff shall

not place children in a locked room or in a dark room with the door closed. 

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 8 of 9

3. Incident reports will be filled out on any disciplinary cases, and information is to be shared
with parents when picking up the child or sooner, when extreme cases occur.  Continued
disciplinary problems will result in the participant being asked to leave the program. 

4. Children who show patterns of endangerment to themselves, other participants or staff will
be asked to leave the program.   

J. Illness or Injury

1. Parents shall be notified immediately in cases of illness or injury. 

2. An ill child will not be allowed to participate if the child is suspected of having a
temperature and/or accompanied by behavior changes or other signs or symptoms until
medical evaluation indicates that the child can be included in the activities.  In the event
that an injury cannot be administered through basic first aid, staff will call 911. 

3. When an injury occurs, an incident report shall be filled out immediately. The form shall
be filled out completely with the original sent to the Recreation Manager, Outdoor
Programs Coordinator and Recreation Program Coordinator and a copy kept in the Day
Camp files. 

VI.    GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR CHILDREN

As a part of the Day Camp Manual, staff will be given the following information: 

A. A child is not allowed to use the phone unless it is an emergency.  In this case, Day Camp staff
should make the call for the child. 

B. Children must stay off any elevated surfaces (tables, counter tops, ping pong tables, etc.). 

C. Children should walk in the building.  Running is permitted only in designated areas. 

D. Bouncing and throwing balls is permitted only in the gym or during outside activities. 

E. Active games using equipment that can cause damage to window, shades, lights, and ceilings
must be played only in the gym. 

F. Children must respect staff and each other. 

G. Children must wear shoes at all times (except during aquatic activities).  

H. Children must be contained and not allowed to filter in with the general public.  You must know
where each and every child is AT ALL TIMES. 

VII.      ACTIVITIES

A. Activities for each group will be planned according to the participant age, interest and ability.  
The activities should be flexible and promote social and educational advancement. 

B. A weekly calendar of activities will be posted for parents the Friday prior to that week of camp. 

C. When taking field trips, staff will: 

ITEMS #6 and 7



Page 9 of 9

1. Count everyone before they leave the program site as well as prior to leaving the field trip
site. 

2. Carry medical information on each child and necessary medications with them on the trip. 
3. Carry a first aid kit. 
4. Carry a cellular phone for emergency use. 
5. Ensure that participants are wearing a camp shirt and a City of Grapevine wristband so that

children are easily identified. 

D. Swimming Pool Based Water Activities
1. Require parent or legal guardian to confirm the child's swimming ability during the

registration process. 
2. Require lifejackets to be worn when child/camper is not affirmed a good swimmer during

water activities.  

E. Lake Based Water Activities
1. Require parent or legal guardian to confirm the child's swimming ability during the

registration process. 
2. Require lifejackets to be worn at all times when entering in the lake or lake -based water

activities regardless of swim strength. 

VIII.       FIELD TRIPS

A. Ratio on field trips will be 10:1 per staff member. 

B. Each staff member is given a list of campers.  Staff is responsible for the assigned list of
campers for the duration of the trip. 

C. A required face to name check will be done prior to leaving the program site, upon arrival at
the field trip site, upon leaving the field trip site and upon arrival back at the program site.   

D. A notebook with all important information for each camper will be taken to each field trip.   

VII. MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT

Standards of care established by Grapevine Parks & Recreation will be monitored and enforced by
city departments responsible for their respective areas as identified: 

A. Health and safety standards will be monitored and enforced by the City’s Police, Fire, and Code
Enforcement Departments. 

B. Staff and program issues will be monitored and enforced by the City of Grapevine Parks & 
Recreation Department.  The Recreation Manager/Lake Parks Manager shall visit each site on
a weekly basis for an informal inspection of the programs.  The Recreation Supervisor, Outdoor
Programs Coordinator and Recreation Program Coordinator is responsible for informally
checking the camp activities on a daily basis. When this staff is not available, another full-time
staff person will be assigned for daily checks. 

ITEMS #6 and 7



ITEM #8

tbrooks




RESOLUTION NO. 2025-001

ARESOLUTION OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS, ADOPTING ALEGISLATIVE AGENDA
FORTHE89THSESSION OFTHELEGISLATURE OFTHE
STATE OFTEXAS ANDPROVIDING ANEFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the89thSession oftheTexas Legislature begins onJanuary 14, 2025;  
and

WHEREAS, theCityofGrapevine hasastrong interest inlegislative activities that
mayaffect theCity; and

WHEREAS, once thelegislative session starts, legislation moves quickly and
oftentimes aCityposition mustbeexpressed onanissuebefore theCityCouncil hasan
opportunity tomeet; and

WHEREAS, thepassage ofabroad legislative agenda willallowstaff to
communicate thelegislative priorities oftheCityonbehalfoftheentireCityCouncil; and

WHEREAS, allconstitutional andstatutory prerequisites fortheapproval ofthis
resolution havebeenmet, including butnotlimited totheOpenMeetings Act; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil deems theadoption ofthisresolution tobeinthebest
interests ofthehealth, safety, andwelfare ofthepublic.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS:  

Section 1. Thatallmatters stated intheabove preamble aretrueandcorrect and
areincorporated hereinasifcopied intheirentirety.  

Section 2. Thatthelegislative agenda attached as “ExhibitA” willserveasthe
official Legislative agenda fortheCityofGrapevine.  

Section 3. Thatthisresolution shall takeeffect fromandafterthedateofits
passage.  

PASSED ANDAPPROVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS onthisthe7thdayofJanuary, 2025.  

APPROVED:  

William D. Tate

ITEM #8



Mayor
ATTEST:  

TaraBrooks
CitySecretary

APPROVED ASTOFORM:  

Matthew C.G. Boyle
CityAttorney

Resolution No. 2025-001 2

ITEM #8



DRAFT
CITYOFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS

th89 LEGISLATIVE SESSION AGENDA

GeneralLegislation
Oppose legislation thatwould restrict theCity’srighttoregulate short termrentals
Monitor changes related tosales taxsourcing
Oppose legislation thatwould restrict eminent domain authority oflocalgovernments
Support legislation toachieve equality andfairness intheappraisal process
Oppose additional revenue caps
Oppose unfunded mandates
Monitor changes to4BandCCPD legislation
Support changes toHousing Finance Corporation (HFC) legislation torequire consent fromthe
hosting community foranother community tocreateanHFCoutside ofitsownjurisdiction.  
Oppose legislation thatallows property owners tounilaterally de-annex fromtheCity

Elections
Oppose anylegislation thatwould further restrictamunicipality’srights toholdanelection
Oppose legislation thatwouldmake localelections partisan

HumanResources
Support legislation thatwouldallowcitiesinTMRStooptoutofcostofliving (COLA) increases
foroneormoreyearswithouta “catchup” penalty whenCOLA’sarereinstated
Oppose legislative changes thatwouldexpand theMeetandConfer law

Library
Oppose further cutstoState funding oflocal libraries andendorse additional funding thatwould
increase digital content forpatrons and funding forremote workforce development activities in
libraries

ParksandRecreation
Support legislation that would increase funding for State Parks and the Texas Recreation &  
ParksAccount
Oppose thediversion ofthesporting goods sales taxawayfromTexas Parks & Wildlife toother
uses

Police
Support legislation increasing law enforcement training and management of critical incidents
andhigh-riskresponses
Support legislation thatwouldfurtherservice/caredeliveryofindividuals inneedofmentalhealth
services

Planning, ZoningandCodeEnforcement
Support legislation toallowmunicipalities authority overthelocation ofgaspipelines
Support legislation thatallows cities torequire reasonable exterior materials (notjustbrick) that
maintains health, safetyandproperty value, follows current national andinternational standards
forbuilding code materials and maintains character, property values, and economic vitality of
identified districts within theircommunity

ITEM #8Exhibit "A"



Support legislation modifying thetiming requirements putinplacebyHB3167sotheygivethe
developers more certainty yethave timeframes thatarereasonable toensure future residents’  
safetyandtheeconomic valueofdeveloped properties
Oppose legislation thatwould restrict theCity’srighttoenforce thetreepreservation ordinance
Oppose mandatory “30dayapproval” deadlines fortheplatandsiteplanreview process
Oppose anylegislation weakening theabilityofaCitytoenforce nuisance ordinances
Oppose state-mandated building codes that restricts the City’s ability to regulate building
standards
Oppose statemandates relative tolotsizesandaccessory dwelling units

Tourism
Support preservation of full funding for Texas tourism ( Office of the Governor, Economic
Development andTourism Division)  
Support protection of the summer travel market by opposing legislation that allows school to
startpriortothe4thMonday inAugust
Support preservation oftheEventTrustprogram
Support reasonable transportation infrastructure policies thatimpact theTexas travel industry
Support preservation ofstate funding forprograms thatbenefit travel and tourism attheTexas
Parks and Wildlife Department ( TP&WD), Texas Historical Commission ( THC), Texas
Department ofTransportation (TXDOT) andTexas Commission ontheArts (TCA)  
Oppose legislation thatwould redirect hotel/motel taxtoanyother entity orearmark itsusefor
anyparticular purpose

Fire
Support the repeal of legislation that limits a city’s ability to require sprinkler systems in
residential dwellings

TransportationandPublicWorks
Support statewide efforts toaddress watersupply issues

EconomicDevelopment
Support arevised incentive program foraTexas “deal closing fund” for large scale projects in
whichaTexas location iscompeting directly withotherstates fortheinvestment
Support policies whichenhance workforce development

ITEM #8



ITEM #9

tbrooks




ITEM #10

tbrooks




ITEM #10



ITEM #10



ITEM #10



ITEM #10



ITEM #10



ITEM #10



ITEM #10



ITEM #11

tbrooks




ITEM #12

tbrooks




ITEM #13

tbrooks




ITEM #14

tbrooks




ITEM #15

tbrooks




ITEM #16

tbrooks




ITEM #16



RESOLUTION NO. 2025-002

ARESOLUTION OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THEACCEPTANCE
ONBEHALF OFTHECITYOFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS FOR
THEPURPOSE OFPARTICIPATING INTHESTATE OF
TEXAS, EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE
ASSISTANCE GRANT PROGRAM, HEREINAFTER
REFERRED TOASTHE “GRANT PROGRAM”;  
CERTIFYING THATTHEAPPLICANT ISELIGIBLE TO
RECEIVE PROGRAM ASSISTANCE; ANDPROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, TheEdward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)  
Program, administered bytheStateofTexas, provides federal funding tosupport law
enforcement agencies inaddressing criminal justice priorities; and

WHEREAS, TheCityofGrapevine (“ theApplicant”) isfullyeligible toreceive
assistance under theGrantProgram; and

WHEREAS, theApplicant isdesirous ofauthorizing anofficial torepresent andact
fortheApplicant indealing withthePolice Department (“theDepartment”) concerning
theGrantProgram; and

WHEREAS, allconstitutional andstatutory prerequisites fortheapproval ofthis
resolution havebeenmet, including butnotlimited totheOpenMeetings Act; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncil deems theadoption ofthisresolution tobeinthebest
interests ofthecitizens ofTheCityofGrapevine.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BEITRESOLVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITY
OFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS:  

Section 1. Thatallmatters stated hereinabove arefoundtobetrueandcorrect
andareincorporated hereinbyreference asifcopied intheirentirety.  

Section 2. That theApplicant hereby certifies thattheyareeligible toreceive
assistance under theGrantProgram.  

Section 3.  ThattheApplicant agrees thatintheeventoflossormisuse ofgrant
funds, theApplicant willreturn funds totheTexas OfficeoftheGovernor.  

ITEM #16



Section 4. ThattheApplicant hereby authorizes anddirects theChiefofPolice
toactfortheApplicant, asthegrantee’sauthorized official, Theauthorized official is
given thepower toapply for, accept, reject, alter, orterminate thegrantonbehalfofthe
Applicant.  

Section 5. TheApplicant hereby specifically authorizes theofficial toaccept
funds fortheDepartment concerning theStateofTexas Edward Byrne Memorial Justice
Assistance GrantProgram, GrantNo. 5042401.   

Section 6.      That thisresolution shall takeeffect fromandafter thedateofits
passage.  

PASSED ANDAPPROVED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS onthisthe7thdayofJanuary, 2025.  

APPROVED:  

William D. Tate
Mayor

ATTEST:  

TaraBrooks
CitySecretary

APPROVED ASTOFORM:  

Matthew C.G. Boyle
CityAttorney

Resolution No. 2025-002 2

ITEM #16



ORDINANCE NO. 2025-002

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITY
OF GRAPEVINE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE
APPROPRIATION OFREVENUE INTHEAMOUNT OF
35,000INTHEGRANT FUNDTOBERECEIVED FROM

THESTATE OFTEXAS, EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM AND
AUTHORIZING THEAPPROPRIATION OF $35,000IN
THEGRANT FUND FOREXPENDITURES ASSOCIATED
WITHTHEGRANT WHICHARECONSISTENT WITHTHE
APPROVED GRANT; DECLARING ANEMERGENCY
ANDPROVIDING ANEFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, theCityofGrapevine hasreceived approval forgrant funds for
theFiscalYear2025Edward ByrneMemorial Justice Assistance GrantProgram
Grant No. 5042401); and

WHEREAS, the City requires thepurchase anduseofthehandheld narcotics
analyzer tobeutilized bythePolice Department toincrease safetyandeffectiveness of
criminal investigation inassociation withthegrant; and

WHEREAS, allconstitutional andstatutory prerequisites fortheapproval of
thisordinance havebeenmet, including butnotlimitedtotheOpenMeetings Actand
Chapter 211oftheLocalGovernment Code; and

WHEREAS, theCityCouncildeemstheadoptionofthisordinance tobeinthebest
interests ofthehealth, safety, andwelfare ofthepublic.  

NOWTHEREFORE, BEITORDAINED BYTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHE CITY
OFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS:  

Section1.  Thatallmattersstated hereinabove arefoundtobetrueandcorrect
andareincorporated hereinbyreference asifcopied intheirentirety.  

Section 2. That theCityCouncil hereby authorizes anamount of $35,000
revenuebeappropriated intheGrantFundbasedonapprovaloftheJustice Assistance
GrantProgram.  

Section3. That the City Council hereby authorizes an amount estimated
at $35,000 beappropriated intheGrant Fund fortheexpenditures associated with the
grant.  

ITEM #16



Section 4.  Thatthetermsandprovisions ofthisordinance shallbedeemed
tobeseverable, andthatifthevalidity ofanysection, subsection, word, sentence,  
orphrase shallbeheld tobe invalid, it shall not affect the remaining part of this
ordinance.  

Section5.  Thatthefactthatthepresentordinances andregulations of
theCityofGrapevine, Texas, areinadequate toproperly safeguard thehealth,  
safety, morals, peace andgeneral welfare oftheinhabitants oftheCityof
Grapevine, Texas, creates anemergency fortheimmediatepreservation ofthe
publicbusiness, property, health, safetyandgeneralwelfareofthepublicwhich
requires thatthisordinance shallbecomeeffective fromandafter thedateofits
finalpassage, anditisaccordingly soordained.  

PASSED ANDAPPROVED BYTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS onthisthe7thdayofJanuary, 2025.  

APPROVED:  

William D. Tate
Mayor

ATTEST:  

TaraBrooks
CitySecretary

APPROVED TOASFORM:  

Matthew C.G. Boyle
CityAttorney

Ordinance No. 2025-002 2

ITEM #16



ITEM #17

tbrooks




ITEM #17



ITEM #18

tbrooks




STATE OFTEXAS
COUNTY OFTARRANT
CITYOFGRAPEVINE

TheCityCouncil oftheCityofGrapevine, Texas metinRegular Session onthisthe17th
dayofDecember, 2024 intheCityCouncil Chambers, Second Floor, 200SouthMain
Street, withthefollowing members present:  

William D. Tate Mayor
Darlene Freed Mayor ProTem
Sharron Rogers Council Member
ChrisCoy Council Member
DuffO’Dell Council Member
PaulSlechta Council Member
LeonLeal Council Member

constituting aquorum, andwith thefollowing members ofthePlanning and Zoning
Commission:  

LarryOliver Chairman
Monica Hotelling ViceChairman
BethTiggelaar Member
TraciHutton Member
Jason Parker Member
KirbyKercheval Member
JustinRoberts Member
MarkAssaad Alternate Member
Wayne Johnson Jr.  Alternate Member

constituting aquorum; andwiththefollowing members oftheCityStaff:  

Bruno Rumbelow CityManager
Jennifer Hibbs Assistant CityManager
Matthew C.G. Boyle CityAttorney
EricaMarohnic Planning Services Director
TaraBrooks CitySecretary

Item1.  Executive Session

Mayor William D. Tateannounced theCityCouncil would recess totheCityCouncil
Conference Roomtoconduct aclosed session regarding:  

A. Realproperty relative todeliberation ofthepurchase, exchange, lease, sale
orvalueofrealproperty (Cityfacilities, PublicWorks, ParksandRecreation
andhistoric preservation andthe185acres) pursuant toSection 551.072,  
Texas Government Code.   

ITEM #19



B. Conference withCityManager andStaff todiscuss anddeliberate
commercial andfinancial information received frombusiness prospects the
Cityseekstohavelocate, stay, orexpand intheCity; deliberate theofferof
afinancial orother incentive; withwhichbusinesses theCityisconducting
economic development negotiations pursuant toSection 551.087, Texas
Government Code.     

TheCityCouncil recessed totheCityCouncil Conference Roomandbegan theclosed
session at7:05p.m. Theclosed session endedat7:22p.m.     

Uponreconvening inopensession intheCouncil Chambers, Mayor Tateasked ifthere
wasanyaction necessary relative toSections 551.072or551.087.   

CityManager Bruno Rumbelow requested Council approve aPurchase andSale
Agreement withKubota consistent with the discussions inExecutive Session and
authorize theCityManager toexecute same andtotakeallother necessary action.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove aPurchase andSaleAgreement withKubota consistent
withthe discussions inExecutive Session andauthorize theCityManager toexecute
sameandtotakeallothernecessary action.  
Motion: Freed
Second: Slechta
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

REGULARMEETING

Mayor Tatecalled theregular meeting toorderat7:30p.m.  

Item2. Invocation andPledge ofAllegiance

Commissioner BethTiggelaar gavetheinvocation andledthePledge ofAllegiance.    

JOINT PUBLIC HEARINGS

Item3. Conditional UsePermit CU24-47 (SewellCadillac EV)  

Mayor Tatedeclared thepublichearing open.  

Planning Services Director Erica Marohnic reported theapplicant wasrequesting a
conditional usepermit toamend thepreviously approved siteplanCU02-52 (Ordinance
No. 2002-098) foranautomotive dealership withsalesandservice ofnewandused
vehicles andtwopolesigns. Thisrequest isspecifically toaddthreeLevel3electric
vehicle (EV) charging stations tothesite. Thesubject property islocated at1001East
StateHighway 114 andiscurrently zoned “PCD”, Planned Commerce Development
District.  

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page2

ITEM #19



Applicant Representative AlbertAlverez provided abriefdescription oftheproject.  

Noonespoke during thepublichearing andtherewasnocorrespondence toreport.   

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: Parker
Second: Hutton
Ayes:   Oliver, Hotelling, Tiggelaar, Hutton, Parker, Kercheval, andRoberts
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: O’Dell
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item4. Conditional UsePermit CU24-48A (Sunbelt Rentals)  

Mayor Tatedeclared thepublichearing open.  

Planning Services Director Marohnic reported theapplicant requested totable thisitem
until theJanuary 21, 2025 jointmeeting.   

Motion wasmadetotablethepublichearing ofConditional UsePermit CU24-48A
Sunbelt Rentals) totheJanuary 21, 2025JointCityCouncil andPlanning andZoning

Commission meeting.   
Motion: Parker
Second: Hutton
Ayes:   Oliver, Hotelling, Tiggelaar, Hutton, Parker, Kercheval, andRoberts
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Motion wasmadetotablethepublichearing ofConditional UsePermit CU24-48A
Sunbelt Rentals) totheJanuary 21, 2025JointCityCouncil andPlanning andZoning

Commission meeting.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item5. Conditional UsePermit CU24-53 (Club4Fitness)  

Mayor Tatedeclared thepublichearing open.  

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page3

ITEM #19



Planning Services Director Marohnic reported theapplicant wasrequesting aconditional
usepermit toamend thepreviously approved siteplanCU98-44 (Ordinance No. 1998- 
114) foraplanned commercial center inconjunction withagrocery store. Thisrequest is
specifically toallowa62,139square footfitness center. Thesubject property islocated
at4000William D. TateAvenue andiscurrently zoned “CC”, Community Commercial
District.  

Applicant Representative William DaviswithPineTreepresented thisitemandanswered
questions fromtheCommission andCouncil. Kenneth Herring with Club4answered
questions fromtheCommission andCouncil.  

Planning Services Director Marohnic answered questions fromtheCommission.   

TimDickenson, 402BoydDrive, Grapevine spoke infavorofthisitem.   

Therewasoneletter insupport provided totheCommission andCouncil.   

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: Hutton
Second: Tiggelaar
Ayes:   Oliver, Hotelling, Tiggelaar, Hutton, Parker, Kercheval, andRoberts
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: O’Dell
Second: Freed
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item6. Conditional UsePermit CU24-54 (BullLionRanch Winery)  

Mayor Tateannounced hewouldbeabstaining fromthis itemandfiledaConflict of
Interest Affidavit withtheCitySecretary.   

Mayor ProTemDarlene Freedopened thepublichearing.    

Planning Services Director Marohnic reported theapplicant wasrequesting aconditional
usepermit toallowforthepossession, storage, retailsalesofon- andoff- premise
consumption ofalcoholic beverages (wineonly) inconjunction withawinery. Thesubject
property islocated at150WestCollege Street, Suite318andiscurrently zoned “CBD”,  
Central Business District.  

Applicant andproperty owner Nandakumar Madireddi presented theproposed project
andanswered questions fromtheCommission andCouncil.   

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page4

ITEM #19



Winery ownerChuck Tordiglione answered questions fromtheCommission andCouncil.    

Historic Preservation Officer DavidKlempin answered questions fromCouncil regarding
necessary approvals fromtheHistoric Preservation Commission.   

CityAttorney Matthew Boyleanswered questions fromCouncil.   

Noonespokeduring thepublichearing andtherewasnocorrespondence toreport.   

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: Hotelling
Second: Tiggelaar
Ayes:   Oliver, Hotelling, Tiggelaar, Hutton, Parker, Kercheval, andRoberts
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: Coy
Second: O’Dell
Ayes:   Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Abstains: Tate
Approved: 6-0-1

Item7. AM23-02BElectric Vehicle Charging Stations

Mayor Tatedeclared thepublichearing open.  

Planning Services Director Marohnic described theproposed changes toComprehensive
Zoning Ordinance ( Ordinance No. 82-73), samebeingAppendix “D” oftheCodeof
Ordinances, tolimit electric vehicle (EV) charging stations asasecondary landuse on
non-residential properties.  

Noonespokeduring thepublichearing andtherewasnocorrespondence toreport.   

Motion wasmadetoclose thepublichearing.  
Motion: Parker
Second: Tiggelaar
Ayes:   Oliver, Hotelling, Tiggelaar, Hutton, Parker, Kercheval, andRoberts
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: Freed
Second: Slechta
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page5

ITEM #19



Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item8. AM24-04Legislative Updates

Mayor Tatedeclared thepublichearing open.  

Planning Services Director Marohnic described theproposed changes toComprehensive
Zoning Ordinance ( Ordinance No. 82-73), samebeingAppendix “D” oftheCodeof
Ordinances, inaccordance withchanges tostate landuseandzoning lawmade during
the86th, 87th, and88thTexas StateLegislative Sessions.  

Noonespokeduring thepublichearing andtherewasnocorrespondence toreport.   

Motion wasmadetoclosethepublichearing.  
Motion: Hutton
Second: Roberts
Ayes:   Oliver, Hotelling, Tiggelaar, Hutton, Parker, Kercheval, andRoberts
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Motion wasmade toclosethepublic hearing.  
Motion: O’Dell
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

ThePlanning andZoning Commission recessed tothePlanning andZoning Commission
Conference Room, Second Floor, toconsider published agenda items.  

CityCouncil remained insession intheCouncil Chambers toconsider published
business.  

Item9.  Citizen Comments

Noonespoke during theCitizen Comments.   

NEWBUSINESS

Item10. Consider acontract forconsultation services tocraftacomprehensive strategy
forredeveloping andreimagining theCrossroads District withMESADesign Group, and
takeanynecessary action.    

Economic Development Director GarinGiacomarro presented thisitemtoCouncil and
outlined thereceivables thatwillbeprovided byMESA Design Group foranestimated
amount of $54,500. Director Giacamarro answered questions fromCouncil.   

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page6

ITEM #19



Motion wasmadetoapprove acontract forconsultation services tocraftacomprehensive
strategy forredeveloping andreimagining theCrossroads DistrictwithMESA Design
Group, andtakeanynecessary action.    
Motion: Freed
Second: Slechta
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Mayor Tateannounced thatCouncil wouldconsider therecommendations ofthePlanning
andZoning Commission next.   

PLANNING ANDZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATIONS

Item24. Conditional UsePermit CU24-47 (Sewell Cadillac EV) – Consider the
recommendation ofthePlanning andZoning Commission andOrdinanceNo. 2024-106,  
ifapplicable, andtakeanynecessary action.  

Chairman Oliver reported theCommission approved theconditional usepermit witha
voteof7-0.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove Conditional UsePermit CU24-47 (SewellCadillac EV) and
OrdinanceNo. 2024-106.   
Motion: Freed
Second: O’Dell
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-106

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS ISSUING CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CU24-47TOAMEND THEPREVIOUSLY
APPROVED SITEPLANCU02-52 (ORDINANCE NO. 2002- 
98) FORANAUTOMOTIVE DEALERSHIP WITHSALES
ANDSERVICE OFNEWANDUSEDVEHICLES ANDTWO
POLE SIGNS, SPECIFICALLY TOADDTHREE LEVEL3
ELECTRIC VEHICLE (EV) CHARGING STATIONS TOTHE
SITE FORBLOCK 1, LOT2R-1A, WALLCON ADDITION
1001EASTSTATE HIGHWAY 114) INADISTRICT ZONED
PCD”, PLANNED COMMERCE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ALLINACCORDANCE WITHASITEPLAN APPROVED
PURSUANT TOSECTION 47OFORDINANCE NO. 82-73
ANDALLOTHER CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND
SAFEGUARDS IMPOSED HEREIN; CORRECTING THE
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP; PRESERVING ALLOTHER

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page7

ITEM #19



PORTIONS OFTHEZONING ORDINANCE; PROVIDING A
CLAUSE RELATING TOSEVERABILITY; DETERMINING
THATTHEPUBLIC INTERESTS, MORALS ANDGENERAL
WELFARE DEMAND THEISSUANCE OFTHIS
CONDITIONAL USEPERMIT; PROVIDING APENALTY
NOTTOEXCEED THESUMOFTWOTHOUSAND
DOLLARS ($2,000.00); DECLARING ANEMERGENCY AND
PROVIDING ANEFFECTIVE DATE

Item25. Conditional UsePermit CU24-48A (Sunbelt Rentals)   

This itemwastabled during thepublichearing andwillbeconsidered attheJanuary 21,  
2025JointCityCouncil andPlanning andZoning Commission meeting.   

Item26. Conditional UsePermit CU24-53 (Club4Fitness)   

Chairman Oliver reported theCommission approved theconditional usepermit witha
voteof7-0.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove Conditional UsePermit CU24-53 (Club4Fitness) and
OrdinanceNo. 2024-108.   
Motion: Slechta
Second: Freed
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-108

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS ISSUING CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CU24-53TOAMEND THEPREVIOUSLY
APPROVED SITEPLANCU98-44 (ORDINANCE NO. 1998- 
114) FORAPLANNED COMMERCIAL CENTER TOALLOW
THEPOSSESSION, STORAGE, RETAIL SALES OFON-  
ANDOFF- PREMISE CONSUMPTION OFALCOHOLIC
BEVERAGES (BEER ANDWINEONLY) INCONJUNCTION
WITHAGROCERY STORE, SPECIFICALLY TOALLOW A
62,139SQUARE FOOT FITNESS FACILITY INADISTRICT
ZONED “CC”, COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT
WITHIN THEFOLLOWING DESCRIBED PROPERTY:  
BLOCK 1, LOT1, TOMTHUMB ADDITION NO. 1 (4000
WILLIAM D. TATEAVENUE) ALLINACCORDANCE WITH
ASITEPLAN APPROVED PURSUANT TOSECTION 47OF
ORDINANCE NO. 82-73ANDALLOTHER CONDITIONS,  
RESTRICTIONS ANDSAFEGUARDS IMPOSED HEREIN;  
CORRECTING THEOFFICIAL ZONING MAP;  

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page8

ITEM #19



PRESERVING ALLOTHER PORTIONS OFTHEZONING
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING ACLAUSE RELATING TO
SEVERABILITY; DETERMINING THATTHEPUBLIC
INTERESTS, MORALS ANDGENERAL WELFARE
DEMAND THEISSUANCE OFTHISCONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT; PROVIDING APENALTY NOTTOEXCEED THE
SUMOFTWOTHOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00);  
DECLARING ANEMERGENCY ANDPROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

Item27. Conditional UsePermit CU24-54 (BullLionRanch Winery)   

Chairman Oliver reported theCommission approved theconditional usepermit witha
voteof7-0stipulating theapplicant willmakeanapplication withtheHistoric Preservation
Commission (HPC) within 90daysfortheproposed building façade changes; anda
legally-enforceable parking agreement withBlaggTire, locatedat604SouthMainStreet,  
isprovided andapproved bytheCityAttorney.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove Conditional UsePermit CU24-54 (BullLionRanch Winery)  
andOrdinanceNo. 2024-109 including thePlanning andZoning Commission’s
requirements thattheapplicant willmakeanapplication withtheHistoric Preservation
Commission (HPC) within 90daysfortheproposed building façade changes; anda
legally-enforceable parking agreement withBlaggTire, locatedat604SouthMainStreet,  
isprovided andapproved bytheCityAttorney.  
Motion: Slechta

Council discussed thismotion.   

Anamended motion wasmadetoapprove Conditional UsePermit CU24-54 (BullLion
Ranch Winery) andOrdinanceNo. 2024-109 including thePlanning andZoning
Commission’srequirements thattheapplicant willmakeanapplication withtheHistoric
Preservation Commission (HPC) within90daysfortheproposed building façade
changes; andalegally-enforceable parking agreement withBlaggTire, located at604
SouthMainStreet, isprovided andapproved bytheCityAttorney; andrequiring allseating
tobeindoors.   
Motion: Slechta
Second: Rogers
Ayes:   Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Abstains: Tate
Approved: 6-0-1

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-109

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITY COUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS ISSUING CONDITIONAL USE
PERMIT CU24-54TOALLOW FORTHEPOSSESSION,  

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page9

ITEM #19



STORAGE, RETAIL SALEANDOFF-PREMISE
CONSUMPTION OFALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES (WINE
ONLY) INCONJUNCTION WITHAWINERY FORBLOCK 4,  
LOT2R, ORIGINAL TOWN OFGRAPEVINE ( 150WEST
COLLEGE STREET, SUITE 318) INADISTRICT ZONED
CBD”, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT ALLIN

ACCORDANCE WITHASITEPLAN APPROVED
PURSUANT TOSECTION 47OFORDINANCE NO. 82-73
ANDALLOTHER CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND
SAFEGUARDS IMPOSED HEREIN; CORRECTING THE
OFFICIAL ZONING MAP; PRESERVING ALLOTHER
PORTIONS OFTHEZONING ORDINANCE; PROVIDING A
CLAUSE RELATING TOSEVERABILITY; DETERMINING
THATTHEPUBLIC INTERESTS, MORALS ANDGENERAL
WELFARE DEMAND THEISSUANCE OFTHIS
CONDITIONAL USEPERMIT; PROVIDING APENALTY
NOTTOEXCEED THESUMOFTWOTHOUSAND
DOLLARS ($2,000.00); DECLARING ANEMERGENCY AND
PROVIDING ANEFFECTIVE DATE

Item28. AM23-02BElectric Vehicle Charging Stations

Chairman Oliver reported theCommission approved theordinance amendment witha
voteof7-0.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove AM23-02BElectric Vehicle Charging Stations and
OrdinanceNo. 2024-110.   
Motion: O’Dell
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-110

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS AMENDING THECOMPREHENSIVE
ZONING ORDINANCE OFTHECITYOFGRAPEVINE,  
TEXAS, SAME BEING ALSO KNOWN ASAPPENDIX “D” OF
THECITYCODE OFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS, AMENDING
SECTION 22, “R-MF”, MULTIFAMILY DISTRICT
REGULATIONS; SECTION 25, “CC”, COMMUNITY
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS; SECTION 26,  
HC”, HIGHWAY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT; SECTION 28,  
CBD”, CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT, SECTION 31, “LI”,  

LIGHT INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT, SECTION 32, “BP”,  
BUSINESS PARK DISTRICT, SECTION 38, AND “GU”,  

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page10

ITEM #19



GOVERNMENTAL USEDISTRICT; TO FURTHER
RESTRICT ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING STATIONS AS
ASECONDARY USEINNONRESIDENTIAL ZONING
DISTRICTS ( AM23-02B); REPEALING CONFLICTING
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING ANEFFECTIVE
DATE

Item29. AM24-04Legislative Updates

Chairman Oliver reported theCommission approved theordinance amendments witha
voteof7-0.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove AM24-04Legislative Updates andOrdinanceNo. 2024- 
111.   
Motion: Freed
Second: O’Dell
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-111

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS AMENDING THECOMPREHENSIVE
ZONING ORDINANCE OFTHECITYOFGRAPEVINE,  
TEXAS, SAME BEING ALSO KNOWN ASAPPENDIX “D” OF
THECITYCODE OFGRAPEVINE, TEXAS, AMENDING
VARIOUS SECTIONS OFTHEZONING ORDINANCE
RELATIVE TOLEGISLATIVE UPDATES FROM THE86TH,  
87TH AND88TH TEXAS LEGISLATURES, (AM24-04);  
REPEALING CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A
PENALTY; PROVIDING ASEVERABILITY CLAUSE;  
DECLARING ANEMERGENCY ANDPROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

Item30. PreliminaryPlatandConceptPlanforLots1, 2and3, Block1, DFWLakes

Chairman Oliver reported theCommission approved thepreliminary platandconcept plan
forLots1, 2and3, Block1, DFWLakeswithavoteof7-0.  

Motionwasmadetoapprove the Statement ofFindings andthePreliminary Platand
Concept PlanforLots1, 2and3, Block1, DFWLakes.   
Motion: Coy
Second: Slechta
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page11

ITEM #19



Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item31. FinalPlatofLot1, Block1, DFWLakes

Chairman Oliver reported theCommission approved thefinalplatofLot1, Block1, DFW
Lakeswithavoteof7-0.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove theStatement ofFindings andtheFinal PlatforLots1,  
Block1, DFWLakes.   
Motion: Coy
Second: Slechta
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Council continued withtheagenda inthepublished order.  

CONSENT AGENDA

Consent itemsaredeemed toneedlittleCouncil deliberation andwereacteduponasone
business item. Anymember oftheCityCouncil ormember oftheaudience mayrequest
thatanitembewithdrawn fromtheconsent agenda andplaced before theCityCouncil
forfulldiscussion. Noonerequested toremove anyitemsfromtheconsent agenda.   

Approval oftheconsent agenda authorizes theCityManager, orhisdesignee, to
implement eachiteminaccordance withStaff recommendations.   

Item11. Consider theawardofanannual contract forfinancial advisory services with
Valley ViewConsulting, LLC.   

ChiefFinancial Officer JeffStrawn recommended approval ofthecontract forfinancial
advisory services regarding theCity’sinvestment portfolio foranamount not toexceed
50,000.   

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item12. Consider anannual contract foremergency medical supplies withBound Tree
Medical, LLC.   

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page12

ITEM #19



FireChief Darrell Brown recommended approval ofthe establishment of fixedannual
pricing foremergency medical supplies, onanas-needed basis, toequip themobile
intensive careunits foranestimated amount of $100,000.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item13. Consider ResolutionNo. 2024-020authorizing anapplication tothefiscalyear
2024Assistance toFirefighters Grant onbehalfoftheNortheast FireDepartment
Association (NEFDA) inorder topurchase aheavy rescue apparatus.   

FireChiefBrown recommended approval oftheresolution authorizing theacceptance of
agrant topurchase aheavyrescue apparatus onbehalfoftheNortheast FireDepartment
Association.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-020

ARESOLUTION OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THESUBMISSION
OFANAPPLICATION TOTHEFY2024ASSISTANCE TO
FIREFIGHTERS GRANT PROGRAM ONBEHALF OFTHE
NORTHEAST FIREDEPARTMENTS ASSOCIATION
NEFDA)  

Item14. Consider therenewal ofanannual contract forpre-employment background
screenings withTouch ThemAll, Inc. (DBAFirstCheck Applicant Screening).   

Human Resources Director Rachel Huitt recommended approval oftherenewal ofthe
annual contract ofpre-employment background screenings foranannual estimated
amount of $25,000.   

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page13

ITEM #19



Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item15. Consider thepurchase ofadditions forlawenforcement bodycameras, supplies,  
services, licenses andequipment withAxonEnterprises, Inc.   

Police ChiefMikeHamlin recommended approval ofthepurchase oflawenforcement
bodycameras, supplies, services, licenses andequipment foranannual amount of
122,693.77.  

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item16. Consider annual contracts forthepurchase ofhotmixasphalt withAustin Asphalt
andReynolds Asphalt.   

Public Works Director BryanBeckrecommended approval oftheannual contracts forthe
purchase ofhotmixasphalt, onas-needed basis, foranannual estimated amountof
500,000.   

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item17. Consider trialofbiologically-based services fortheelimination ofthebuildupof
fats, oilsandgrease inthewastewater collection system withIN-PIPETechnology.   

Public Works Director Beckrecommended approval ofasix-month trialofbiologically- 
based services fortheelimination ofthebuildup offats, oilsandgrease inthewastewater
collection system inanestimated amount of $48,000.    

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item18. Consider subscription forservices withEnvironmental Systems Research
Institute, Inc. fortheESRIAdvantage Program.   

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page14

ITEM #19



Public Works Director Beckrecommended approval ofasubscription forservices forthe
ESRIAdvantage Program toprovide consulting, support andtraining fortheCity’s
enterprise geographic systems software foranestimated amount of $110,000.    

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item19. AmendedFinalPlatforLots1A-19A, 20XAand21XA, Block1, DoveStation –  
consider theapplication submitted byMufasa Meadows, LLCrequesting toabandon a
drainage andutilityeasement onproperty located onKosse Court.   

Public Works Director Beckrecommended approval ofthe Statement ofFindings and
Amended FinalPlatofLots1A-19A, 20XA and21XA, Block1, DoveStation.   

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item 20. Consider OrdinanceNo. 2024-104abandoning adrainage easement onLots
1-3, Block1, DoveStation forproperty located at2988, 2994and3000Kosse Court.   

PublicWorks Director Beck recommended approval oftheordinance toabandon a
drainage easement onLots1-3, Block1DoveStation onproperty located at2988, 2994
and3000Kosse Court.   

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-104

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS, ABANDONING ANDVACATING A
DRAINAGE EASEMENT ONDOVESTATION, CITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS ASHEREINAFTER DESCRIBED;  
DECLARING ANEMERGENCY ANDPROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page15

ITEM #19



Item21. Consider acontract forthereplacement oftheTrain2MotorControl Center at
theWastewater Treatment PlantwithGraybar Electric andOrdinanceNo. 2024-105
appropriating thefunds.   

Public Works Director Beckrecommended approval ofacontract forthereplacement of
theMotorControl Center forTrain2attheWastewater Treatment Plant foranestimated
amount of $550,000.   

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-105

ANORDINANCE OFTHECITYCOUNCIL OFTHECITYOF
GRAPEVINE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE
APPROPRIATION OF $550,000INTHEUTILITY
ENTERPRISE FUND; DECLARING ANEMERGENCY AND
PROVIDING ANEFFECTIVE DATE

Item22. Consider thepayment oftheGrapevine Lakeoperation andmaintenance feeto
theUSArmyCorpsofEngineers.    

Public Works Director Beckrecommended approval oftheannual payment of
103,184.69foroperation andmaintenance oftheGrapevine Lakereservoir.   

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Item23. Consider theminutes oftheNovember 19andDecember 3, 2024Regular City
Council meetings.   

CitySecretary TaraBrooks recommended approval oftheminutes asprovided.    

Motion wasmadetoapprove theconsent agenda aspresented.   
Motion: Rogers
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page16

ITEM #19



ADJOURNMENT

Motion wasmadetoadjourn themeeting at8:41p.m.  
Motion: Slechta
Second: Coy
Ayes:   Tate, Freed, Rogers, Coy, O’Dell, Slechta, andLeal
Nays:   None
Approved: 7-0

Passed andapproved bytheCityCouncil oftheCityofGrapevine, Texas onthisthe7th
dayofJanuary, 2025.  

APPROVED:  

William D. Tate
Mayor

ATTEST:   

TaraBrooks
CitySecretary

CityCouncil December17, 2024 Page17

ITEM #19


	Agenda
	Item 06 - Youth Programs Standards of Care
	Item 08 - Legislative Agenda
	Item 09 - 6 Stones
	Item 10 - Fireworks
	Item 11 - Utility Billing
	Item 12 - EMS Services
	Item 13 - Book Leasing
	Item 14 - Boat Ramp
	Item 15 - Oak Grove Park
	Item 16 - Narcotic Analyzer
	Item 17 - Law Enforcement Assistance
	Item 18 - Electrical Supplies
	Item 19 - Minutes



